Attachment 1 Page 1

# **Attachment 1**

Resale

# **TABLE OF CONTENTS**

1	DISCOUNT RATES	3
2	DEFINITION OF TERMS	3
3	GENERAL PROVISIONS	3
4	BELLSOUTH'S PROVISION OF SERVICES TO TCG	8
5	MAINTENANCE OF SERVICES	.12
6	ANNOYANCE CALLS	.12
7	LINE INFORMATION DATABASE ("LIDB")	.13
8	RAO HOSTING	.13
9	OPTIONAL DAILY USAGE FILE ("ODUF")	.13
10	ENHANCED OPTIONAL DAILY USAGE FILE ("EODUF")	.13
EX	HIBIT A	15
EX	HIBIT B	17
EX	HIBIT C	19
ΕX	HIBIT D	

#### **RESALE**

#### 1 Discount Rates

1.1 The discount applied to TCG's purchase of BellSouth's telecommunications services for purposes of resale shall be as set forth in Exhibit A, attached hereto and incorporated herein by this reference. The discount shall be applied to the retail rate for the telecommunications service purchased by TCG. Such discount shall reflect the costs attributable to any marketing, billing, collection and other costs avoided by BellSouth as specified in the Act, by the FCC and the appropriate state public service commission.

#### 2 Definition of Terms

- 2.1 COMPETITIVE LOCAL EXCHANGE COMPANY ("CLEC") means a telephone company certificated by the public service commission to provide local exchange service.
- 2.2 CUSTOMER OF RECORD means the entity responsible for placing application for service; requesting additions, rearrangements, maintenance or discontinuance of service; and payment in full of charges incurred.
- 2.3 DEPOSIT means assurance provided by a Customer of Record in the form of cash, surety bond or bank letter of credit to be held by BellSouth.
- 2.4 END USER means the ultimate user of the telecommunications services.
- 2.5 NEW SERVICES means functions, features or capabilities that are not currently offered by BellSouth. This includes packaging of existing services or combining a new function, feature or capability with an existing service.
- 2.6 RESALE means an activity wherein a CLEC, such as TCG, subscribes to the telecommunications services of BellSouth and then offers those telecommunications services to the public.

#### 3 **General Provisions**

3.1 At the request of TCG and pursuant to the requirements of the Act, TCG may resell the telecommunications services of BellSouth that

BellSouth provides at retail to subscribers who are not telecommunications carriers, subject to the terms and conditions specifically set forth herein. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the exclusions and limitations on services available for resale will be as set forth in Exhibit B, attached hereto and incorporated herein by this reference. TCG may purchase resale services from BellSouth for its own use in operating its business. The resale discount will apply to those services under the following conditions:

- 3.1.1 TCG must resell services to other end users;
- 3.1.2 TCG must order services through resale interfaces, i. e., the Local Carrier Service Center ("LCSC") and/or appropriate Resale Account Teams pursuant to Attachment 7 of this Agreement, incorporated herein by this reference; and
- 3.1.3 TCG cannot be a CLEC for the single purpose of selling to itself.
- The provision of services by BellSouth to TCG does not constitute a joint undertaking for the furnishing of any service.
- 3.3 TCG will be the Customer of Record for all telecommunications services purchased from BellSouth for the purpose of resale. Except as specified herein, BellSouth will take orders from, bill and expect payment from TCG for said services.
- 3.4 TCG will be BellSouth's single point of contact for all services purchased pursuant to this Attachment 1. BellSouth shall have no contact with the end user except to the extent provided for herein.
- 3.5 BellSouth will continue to bill the end user for any services that the end user specifies it wishes to receive directly from BellSouth. BellSouth will continue to directly market its own telecommunications products and services and in doing so may establish independent relationships with end users of TCG.
- 3.6 Neither Party shall interfere with the right of any person or entity to obtain service directly from the other Party.
- 3.7 Current telephone numbers may normally be retained by end user. However, telephone numbers are the property of BellSouth and are assigned to the service furnished. TCG has no property right to the telephone number or any other call number designation associated with services furnished by BellSouth, and no right to the continuance of service through any particular central office. BellSouth reserves the

right to change such numbers, or the central office designation associated with such numbers, or both, solely in accordance with BellSouth's practices and procedures and on a non-discriminatory basis.

- For the purpose of the resale of BellSouth's telecommunications services by TCG, BellSouth will provide TCG with an on line access to telephone numbers pursuant to Attachment 5, Sections 1.2 and 1.3, incorporated herein by this reference.
- 3.9 Service is furnished subject to the condition that it will not be used for any unlawful purpose.
- 3.10 BellSouth can refuse service when it has grounds to believe that service will be used in violation of the law.
- 3.11 BellSouth accepts no responsibility to any person for any unlawful act committed by TCG or its end users as part of providing service to TCG for purposes of resale or otherwise.
- 3.12 The characteristics and methods of operation of any circuits, facilities or equipment provided by any person or entity other than BellSouth shall not:
- 3.12.1 Interfere with or impair service over any facilities of BellSouth, its affiliates, or its connecting and concurring carriers involved in its service: or
- 3.12.2 Impair the privacy of any communications.
- 3.13 If TCG utilizes a BellSouth resold telecommunications service in a manner other than which the service was originally intended as described in BellSouth's retail tariffs, TCG has the responsibility to notify BellSouth. BellSouth will only provision and maintain said service consistent with the terms and conditions of the tariff describing said service.
- 3.14 Facilities and/or equipment utilized by BellSouth to provide service to TCG remain the property of BellSouth.
- 3.15 White page directory listings will be provided in accordance with Section 20 of the General Terms and Conditions of this Agreement, incorporated herein by this reference.

- 3.16 BellSouth provides electronic access to customer record information pursuant to Section 2 of Attachment 6, incorporated herein by this reference. Customer record information includes customer specific information in the Customer Record Information System ("CRIS") and the Regional Street Address Guide ("RSAG"). TCG agrees not to view, copy, or otherwise obtain access to the customer record information of any end user without that end user's permission, and further agrees that TCG will obtain access to customer record information only in strict compliance with all applicable state and federal laws, rules and regulations.
- 3.17 All costs incurred by BellSouth to develop and implement the electronic interfaces shall be recovered from CLECs who utilize the services, unless otherwise ordered by the Commission. Charges for the electronic interfaces developed and implemented to access Operational Support Systems functions ("OSS") for accessing customer record information and placing local service requirements for resale shall be as set forth in Exhibit A, attached hereto and incorporated herein by this reference.
- 3.18 Where available to BellSouth's end users, BellSouth shall provide the following telecommunications services at a discount to allow for voice mail services:
  - Simplified Message Desk Interface Enhanced ("SMDI-E")
  - Simplified Message Desk Interface ("SMDI")
  - Message Waiting Indicator ("MWI") stutter dialtone and message waiting light feature capabilities
  - Call Forward on Busy/Don't Answer ("CF-B/DA")
  - Call Forward on Busy ("CF/B")
  - Call Forward Don't Answer ("CF/DA")
- 3.19 Further, BellSouth messaging services set forth in BellSouth's Messaging Service Information Package, available on BellSouth's website, shall be made available for resale without the wholesale discount.
- 3.20 BellSouth's Inside Wire Maintenance Service Plans may be made available for resale at rates, terms and conditions as set forth by BellSouth and without the wholesale discount.

- 3.21 If TCG requests a special assembly, TCG agrees to pay the costs incurred by BellSouth for providing the requested special assembly. The costs will be provided to TCG prior to providing the service. Such costs could include both recurring and non-recurring charges and shall exclude any costs attributable to any marketing, billing, collection or other costs that will be avoided by BellSouth in providing the service to TCG.
- 3.22 Recovery of charges associated with implementing Number Portability shall be as set forth in Section 2.5 of Attachment 5, incorporated herein by this reference.
- 3.23 BellSouth agrees to notify TCG electronically of any changes in the terms and conditions under which it offers telecommunications services to end users who are non-telecommunications carriers. including, but not limited to, the introduction or discontinuance of any features, functions, services or promotions, at least forty-five (45) days prior to the effective date of any such change, whichever is earlier. TCG recognizes that certain revisions may occur between the time BellSouth notifies TCG of a change pursuant to this Section and BellSouth's tariff filing of such change. BellSouth shall notify TCG of such revisions consistent with BellSouth's internal notification process but TCG accepts the consequences of such mid-stream changes as an uncertainty of doing business and, therefore, will not hold BellSouth responsible for any resulting inconvenience or cost incurred by TCG unless caused by the intentional misconduct of BellSouth for the purposes of this Section. The notification given pursuant to this Section will not be used by either Party to market its offering of such changed services externally in advance of BellSouth's filing of any such changes. Any change requiring modifications to BellSouth's electronic interface will be as set forth in Section 1.5 of Attachment 7, incorporated herein by this reference. The notification given pursuant to this Section will not be used by either Party to market its offering of such changed services externally in advance of BellSouth's filing of any such changes.
- 3.24 BellSouth shall provide 911/E911 for TCG end users in the same manner that it is provided to BellSouth end users. BellSouth shall provide and validate TCG end users information to the PSAP. BellSouth shall use its service order process to update and maintain, on the same schedule that it uses for its end users, the TCG end users service information in the ALI/DMS data base (Automatic Location

Identification/Database Management System) used to support 911/E911 services.

- 3.25 BellSouth and TCG shall provide local and toll dialing parity to each other with no unreasonable dialing delays. Dialing parity shall be provided for all originating telecommunications services that require dialing to route a call. BellSouth and TCG shall permit similarly situated telephone exchange service end users to dial the same number of digits to make a local telephone call notwithstanding the identity of the end user's or the called party's telecommunications service provider.
- 3.26 Pursuant to 47 CFR Section 51.617, BellSouth will bill TCG end user common line charges identical to the end user common line charges BellSouth bills its end users.
- In general, BellSouth will not become involved in disputes between TCG and TCG's end users over resold services. If a dispute does arise that cannot be settled without the involvement of BellSouth, TCG shall contact the designated service center for resolution. BellSouth will make every effort to assist in the resolution of the dispute and will work with TCG to resolve the matter in as timely a manner as possible. TCG may be required to submit documentation to substantiate the claim.

## 4 BellSouth's Provision of Services to TCG

- 4.1 TCG agrees that its resale of BellSouth services shall be as follows:
- 4.1.1 No terms and conditions, including use and user restrictions, shall be applicable to the resale of BellSouth's telecommunications services except for a restriction on the resale of cross-class selling and reasonable, nondiscriminatory and narrowly tailored terms, conditions and limitations in the underlying BellSouth tariffs.
- 4.1.2 Hotel and Hospital PBX services are the only telecommunications services available for resale to Hotel/Motel and Hospital customers, respectively. Similarly, Access Line Service for Customer Provided Coin Telephones is the only local service available for resale to Independent Payphone Provider ("IPP") customers. Shared Tenant Service customers can only be sold those local exchange access services available in BellSouth's A23 Shared Tenant Service Tariff in the states of Florida, Georgia, North Carolina and South Carolina, and in A27 in the states of Alabama, Kentucky, Louisiana, Mississippi and Tennessee.

- 4.1.3 BellSouth reserves the right to periodically audit services purchased by TCG to establish compliance with the terms and conditions set forth above. Such audit shall not occur more than once in a calendar year. TCG shall make any and all records and data available to BellSouth or BellSouth's auditors on a reasonable basis. BellSouth shall bear the cost of said audit.
- 4.1.4 Resold services are subject to the same terms and conditions as are specified for such services when furnished to an individual end user of BellSouth in the appropriate section of BellSouth's tariffs. Specific tariff features (e.g., a usage allowance per month) shall not be aggregated across multiple resold services unless specifically provided for in BellSouth's retail tariffs.
- 4.1.5 Telephone numbers transmitted via any resold service feature are intended solely for the use of the end user of the feature.
- 4.1.6 BellSouth will provide TCG will at least the capability to provide an TCG end user the same experience as BellSouth provides its own end users with respect to all resold services. The capability provided to TCG by BellSouth shall be in accordance with standards or other measurements that are at least equal to the level that BellSouth provides or is required to provide by law or its own internal procedures.

## 4.2 **CLASS and Custom Features Requirements**

4.2.1 TCG may purchase the entire set of CLASS and custom features and functions, or a subset of any one or any combination of such features, on an end user-specific basis, without restriction on the minimum or maximum number of lines and features that may be purchased for any one level of service to the extent such restrictions do not apply to BellSouth's retail end users.

# 4.3 Voluntary Federal Customer Financial Assistance Programs

4.3.1 Local telecommunications services provided to low-income subscribers, pursuant to requirements established by the appropriate state regulatory body, include programs such as Voluntary Federal Customer Financial Assistance Program and Link-Up America ("Voluntary Federal Customer Financial Assistance Programs"). When a BellSouth end user eligible for the Voluntary Federal Customer Financial Assistance Program, or other similar state programs, chooses to obtain local service from TCG, BellSouth shall forward available information regarding such end user's eligibility to participate

in such programs to TCG, in electronic format in accordance with procedures to be mutually established by the Parties and applicable state and federal law.

# 4.4 Hospitality Service

4.4.1 BellSouth shall provide all blocking, screening, and all other applicable functions available for hospitality lines.

## 4.5 **Blocking Service**

- 4.5.1 BellSouth shall provide call blocking of 700, 900, and 976 services individually or in any combination upon request, including bill to third party and collect calls from TCG on a line, trunk, or individual service basis at parity with what BellSouth provides its end users.
- 4.6 Routing to Directory Assistance, Operator and Repair Services
- 4.6.1 BellSouth shall make available to TCG the ability to route calls utilizing the customized or compatible signaling protocol:
- 4.6.1.1 Local Directory Assistance calls (411, (NPA) 555-1212) dialed by TCG end users directly to the TCG directory assistance services platform;
- 4.6.1.2 Local operator services calls (0+, 0-) dialed by TCG end users directly to the TCG local operator services platform. Such traffic shall be routed over trunk groups between BellSouth end offices and the TCG local operator services platform, using standard operator services dialing protocols of 0+ or 0-; and
- 4.6.1.3 Repair calls (e.g., 611) dialed by TCG end users directly to the TCG repair center.
- 4.6.2 All routing shall permit TCG end users to dial the same telephone numbers for TCG directory assistance, local operator service and repair that similarly situated BellSouth end users dial for reaching equivalent BellSouth services.
- 4.6.2.1 BellSouth branding is the default service level.
- 4.6.2.2 Unbranding, custom branding, and self branding require TCG to order customized routing for each originating BellSouth end office identified

- by TCG. Rates for customized routing are set forth in Exhibit C of this Attachment, incorporated herein by this reference.
- 4.6.2.3 Customer branding and self branding require TCG to order dedicated trunking from each BellSouth end office identified by TCG, to either the BellSouth Traffic Operator Position System ("TOPS") or TCG operator service provider. Rates for trunks are set forth in applicable BellSouth tariffs, or Exhibit A of Attachment 2, incorporated herein by this reference.
- 4.6.2.4 Unbranding Unbranded directory assistance and/or operator call processing calls ride common trunk groups provisioned by BellSouth from those end offices identified by TCG to the BellSouth TOPS. These calls are routed to "no announcement."

# 4.7 Busy Line Verification and Emergency Line Interrupt

4.7.1 Where BellSouth does not route operator services traffic to TCG's platform, BellSouth shall perform BLV/ELI for TCG on resold BellSouth lines. Where BellSouth routes operator services traffic to TCG's platform, BellSouth shall provide BLV/ELI services when requested by TCG operators.

### 4.8 **Directory Assistance and Operator Services**

- 4.8.1 Where BellSouth provides directory assistance service on behalf of TCG, it shall be at the same level of directory assistance service available to BellSouth end users. If requested by TCG, BellSouth will provide TCG directory assistance service under the TCG brand. Where not technically feasible, such calls will be unbranded.
- 4.8.2 Where BellSouth provides operator services on behalf of TCG, it shall be at the same level of service available to BellSouth end users. BellSouth will provide service in accordance with all applicable state requirements for operator services.
- 4.8.3 Upon request, BellSouth agrees to provide TCG operator services branded as an TCG call. Where not technically feasible, such calls will be unbranded.
- 4.8.4 Additionally, BellSouth warrants that such service will provide the following minimum capabilities to TCG end users:

- 4.8.4.1 Instant credit on calls, as provided to BellSouth end users; and
- 4.8.4.2 Routing of calls to TCG when requested via existing Operator Transfer Service ("OTS").

#### 5 **Maintenance of Services**

- TCG and BellSouth will adopt and adhere to the standards contained in the applicable CLEC Work Center Operational Understanding between TCG and BellSouth dated February 3, 1997, or as amended, incorporated herein by this reference, regarding maintenance and installation of service.
- 5.2 Services resold pursuant to this Attachment 1 shall be maintained by BellSouth.
- 5.3 TCG or its end users may not rearrange, move, disconnect, remove or attempt to repair any facilities owned by BellSouth, other than by connection or disconnection to any interface means used, except with the written consent of BellSouth.
- BellSouth will bill TCG for handling troubles that are found not to be in BellSouth's network pursuant to its standard time and material charges. The standard time and material charges will be no more than what BellSouth charges to its retail end users for the same services.
- 5.5 BellSouth reserves the right to contact TCG's end users on TCG's behalf, if deemed necessary, for maintenance purposes.
- 5.6 BellSouth shall ensure that all BellSouth representatives who receive inquiries regarding TCG services when providing services on behalf of TCG: (i) refer such inquiries to TCG at a telephone number provided by TCG; (ii) provide TCG supplied telephone numbers to callers who inquire about TCG services or products; (iii) do not in any way disparage or discriminate against TCG, or its products or services; and (iv) do not provide information about BellSouth products or services.

## 6 Annoyance Calls

6.1 BellSouth will continue to process calls made to the annoyance call center and will advise TCG when it is determined that annoyance calls are originated from one of its end user's locations. BellSouth shall be indemnified, defended and held harmless by TCG and/or the end user

against any claim, loss or damage arising from providing this information to TCG. It is the responsibility of TCG to take the corrective action necessary with its end users who make annoying calls. Failure to do so will result in BellSouth's disconnecting the end user's service pursuant to Attachment 6 of this Agreement, incorporated herein by this reference.

# 7 Line Information Database ("LIDB")

7.1 The Parties' agreement relating to LIDB storage is included in Exhibit A to Attachment 6 of this Agreement, incorporated herein by this reference.

## 8 RAO Hosting

8.1 The Parties' agreement relating to RAO Hosting is included in Exhibit B to Attachment 6 of this Agreement, incorporated herein by this reference.

## 9 Optional Daily Usage File ("ODUF")

9.1 The Parties' agreement relating to ODUF is included in Exhibit C to Attachment 6 of this Agreement, incorporated herein by this reference.

## 10 Enhanced Optional Daily Usage File ("EODUF")

The Parties' agreement relating to EODUF is included in Exhibit D of Attachment 6 of this Agreement, incorporated herein by this reference.

#### APPLICABLE DISCOUNTS

The telecommunications services available for purchase by TCG for the purposes of resale to TCG end users shall be available at the following discount off of the retail rate. If TCG cancels an order for telecommunications services for the purposes of resale, any costs incurred by BellSouth in conjunction with the provisioning of that order will be recovered in accordance with the applicable sections of the General Subscriber Services Tariff and the Private Line Service Tariff.

#### **DISCOUNT\***

STATE	RESIDENCE	BUSINESS	CSAs***
ALABAMA	16.3%	16.3%	
FLORIDA	21.83%	16.81%	
GEORGIA	20.3%	17.3%	
KENTUCKY	16.79%	15.54%	
LOUISIANA	20.72%	20.72%	9.05%
MISSISSIPPI	15.75%	15.75%	
NORTH CAROLINA	21.5%	17.6%	
SOUTH CAROLINA	14.8%	14.8%	8.98%
TENNESSEE**	16%	16%	·

- \* When TCG provides Resale service in a cross boundary area (areas that are part of the local serving area of another state's exchange) the rates, regulations and discounts for the tariffing state will apply. Billing will be from the serving state.
- \*\* In Tennessee, if TCG provides its own operator services and directory services, the discount shall be 21.56%. TCG must provide written notification to BellSouth within 30 days prior to providing its own operator services and directory services to qualify for the higher discount rate of 21.56%.
- \*\*\* Unless noted in this column, the discount for Business will be the applicable discount rate for CSAs.

# RATES FOR INTERFACE TO OPERATIONAL SUPPORT SYSTEMS

BellSouth has developed and made available the following mechanized systems by which TCG may submit LSRs electronically.

LENS Local Exchange Navigation System

EDI Electronic Data Interface

EDI-PC Electronic Data Interface – Personal Computer

TAG Telecommunications Access Gateway

LSRs submitted by means of one of these interactive interfaces will incur an electronic interface ordering charge as specified in the Table below. Such charges will not be refunded if the order is canceled. An individual LSR will be identified for billing purposes by its Purchase Order Number ("PON"). LSRs submitted by means other than one of these interactive interfaces (mail, fax, courier, etc.) will incur a manual order charge as specified in the table below:

INTERFACE RATES	<u>Electronic</u>	<u>Manual</u>			
	Per LSR received from TCG by one	Per LSR received from TCG by			
	of the interactive electronic	means other than one of the			
interfaces		interactive electronic interfaces			
Electronic Interface LSR					
Charge	\$10.89	\$22.00			
USOC	SOMEC	SOMAN			

Note: In addition to the electronic interface charges, applicable discounted service order and related discounted charges apply per the tariff.

#### DENIAL/RESTORAL ELECTRONIC INTERFACE CHARGE

In the event TCG provides a list of customers to be denied and restored, rather than an LSR, each location on the list will require a separate PON and therefore will be billed as one LSR per location.

Note: Supplements or clarifications to a previously billed LSR will not incur another electronic interface charge.

# EXCLUSIONS AND LIMITATIONS ON SERVICES AVAILABLE FOR RESALE

	Type of		AL		FL		GA		KY		LA	
	Service		Discount?	Resale?	Discount?	Resale?	Discount?	Resale?	Discount?	Resale?	Discount?	
1	Grandfathered Services (Note 1)	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes	
2	Contract Service Arrangements(Note 2)	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes	
3	Promotions - > 90 Days(Note 3)	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes	
4	Promotions - < 90 Days (Note 3)	Yes	No	Yes	No	Yes	No	No	No	Yes	No	
5	Lifeline/Link Up Services	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes	Note 4	Note 4	Yes	Yes	
6	911/E911 Services	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes	No	No	
	N11 Services	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes	No	No	No	No	
8	AdWatch <sup>SM</sup> Svc (See Note 5)	Yes	No	Yes	No	Yes	No	Yes	No	Yes	No	
9	MemoryCall® Service	Yes	No	Yes	No	Yes	No	Yes	No	Yes	No	
10	Mobile Services	Yes	No	Yes	No	Yes	No	Yes	No	Yes	No	
11	Federal Subscriber Line Charges	Yes	No	Yes	No	Yes	No	Yes	No	Yes	No	
12	Non-Recurring Charges	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes	
13	Customer Line Charge – Number Portability	Yes	No	Yes	No	Yes	No	Yes	No	Yes	No	

Type of		MS		NC		;	SC	TN	
	Service	Resale?	Discount?	Resale?	Discount?	Resale?	Discount?	Resale?	Discount?
1	Grandfathered Services (Note 1)	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes
2	Contract Service Arrangements	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes
3	Promotions - > 90 Days(Note 3)	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes	Note 6
4	Promotions - < 90 Days (Note 3)	Yes	No	Yes	No	Yes	No	No	No
5	Lifeline/Link Up Services	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes	Note 4
6	911/E911 Services	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes
7	N11 Services	No	No	No	No	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes
8	AdWatch <sup>SM</sup> Svc (See Note 5)	Yes	No	Yes	No	Yes	No	Yes	No
9	MemoryCall <sup>®</sup> Service	Yes	No	Yes	No	Yes	No	Yes	No
10	Mobile Services	Yes	No	Yes	No	Yes	No	Yes	No
11	Federal Subscriber Line Charges	Yes	No	Yes	No	Yes	No	Yes	No
12	Non-Recurring Charges	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes	No
13	Customer Line Charge – Number Portability	Yes	No	Yes	No	Yes	No	Yes	No

#### **Applicable Notes:**

- 1 **Grandfathered services** can be resold only to existing subscribers of the grandfathered service.
- 2 (Georgia) CSAs are available for resale at the same terms and conditions offered to BellSouth's customers.
- 3 Where available for resale, **promotions** will be made available only to customers who would have qualified for the promotion had it been provided by BellSouth directly.
- 4 **Lifeline/Link Up** services may be offered only to those subscribers who meet the criteria that BellSouth currently applies to subscribers of these services. In Kentucky, TCG is responsible for funding its own Lifeline and Link Up benefit. In Tennessee, TCG shall purchase

# Attachment 1 Page 17 Exhibit B

BellSouth's Message Rate Service at the stated tariff rate, less the wholesale discount. TCG must further discount the wholesale Message Rate Service to Lifeline customers with a discount which is no less than the minimum discount that BellSouth now provides. TCG is responsible for recovering the Subscriber Line Charge from the National Exchange Carriers Association interstate toll settlement pool just as BellSouth does today. The maximum rate that TCG may charge for Lifeline Service shall be capped at the flat retail rate offered by BellSouth.

- 5 AdWatch<sup>SM</sup> Service is tariffed as BellSouth<sup>®</sup> AIN Virtual Number Call Detail Service.
- 6 In Tennessee, long-term **promotions** (offered for more than ninety (90) days) may be obtained at one of the following rates:
  - (a) the stated tariff rate, less the wholesale discount;
  - (b) the promotional rate (the promotional rate offered by BellSouth will not be discounted further by the wholesale discount rate)

Customized routing, per unique line class code, per request, per switch	USOC	Kentucky
NRC	USRCR	\$229.65
NRC – Manual Service Order		